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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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Brian D. Kemner
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
MARC BLOCK, on behalf of himself and all others
similarly situated, Civil Action No.
Plaintiff,
CLASS ACTION
V.
-{ COMPLAINT

RBS CITIZENS, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
INC., d/b/a “Charter One”

Defendant. _
INTRODUCTION

1.  Thisis a class action, brougilt on behalf of persons who opened a Home Equity
Line of Credit ( hereafter “HELOC”) in the United States with RBS Citizens, N.A. d/b/a/
“Charter One” (hereafter “Charter One” or “Defendant™) and who, as part of that transaction,
signed certain pre-printed, uniformly-worded form contract documents with Charter One, which
promised that Charter One would charge them no annual fee on the HELOC account, but who
have nevertheless been charged a $100 annual fee on their HELOC by Charter One pursuant to
the unifor:m policy alleged herein.

2. This action raises claims of breach of contract, breach of the implied duty of
good faith and fair dealing and the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1601 et seq. (hereafter
“TILA™).

3.  Because this action involves a national bank headquartered in the State of Rhode
Island, and based on the uniform language of the “choice of law” clause contained in the
HELOC form contract documents signed by Plaintiff and the class, Rhode Island state law

applies to all claims for breach of express or implied contract brought in this action, regardless of
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the state in which the HELOC contract was actually signed or where the class member resides.

4.  Plaintiff seeks, on behalf of himself and the class, refunds of the $100 annual fees
unlawfully collected from Plaintiff and the class by Charter One, in violation of the plain
language of the pre-printed, uniformly-worded form contract documents which promised no such
fees would be charged, as well as injunctive relief, attorney’s fees and costs, and any other
appropriate relief available under either Rhode Island law or TILA.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5.  This Court has federal subject matter jurisdiction over the claims alleged herein
because this action raises claims under TILA, a federal statute.

6. Federal jurisdiction also exists under the Class Action Fairness Act in that the
amount in controversy in this action exceeds $5 million, there are more than 100 proposed class
members, and Defendant and at least some class members are citizens of different states.

7.  The Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the Rhode Island state law claims‘
alleged herein pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a). Supplemental jurisdiction is properly exercised
over such state law claims, which present issues of fact which overlap with the TILA claims.

8.  Venue is properly placed in this Court as Plaintiff resides in Burlington County,
New Jersey, the HELOC form contract documents signed by Plaintiff were executed in
Burlington County, New Jersey, the property which secures Plaintiff’s HELOC is in Burlington
County, New Jersey, Defendant operates bank branches, inter alia, in Burlington County, New
Jersey, and Defendant otherwise does business, inter alia, in Burlington County, New Jersey.

PARTIES
9.  Plaintiff Marc Block resides in Marlton, Burlington County, New Jersey. Like all

members of the proposed classes, Plaintiff Block opened a HELOC account with Charter One
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during the class period, he executed the same pre-printed, uniformly-worded HELOC form
contract documents as the other class members, which promised no annual fee Womd be charged,
and was nonetheless charged a $100 annual fee on his HELOC by Charter One. |

10. | Defendant RBS Citizens, N.A., d/b/a “Charter One,” is a national bank subject to
12 U.S.C. §85, which is headquartered at One Citizens Plaza, Providence, Rhode Island, 02903.

FACTS GIVING RISE TO THE CAUSES OF ACTION

11. Charter One is a trade name used by Defendant RBS Citizens, N.A.

12. Indescribing itself on its website, Defendant represents that it is the 13 largest
bank in the United States, doing business in 11 states and offering a broad range of financial
services to over five million individuals, companies, non-profits and mstltutxons

13. Defendant’s website goes on to claim that it has total assets of $132.9 billion
dollars and deposits of $95.7 billion dollars as of December 31, 2014.

14. Among the business conducted by Charter One is the extension of home equity
lines of credit to customers such as Plaintiff and the class.

15. A home equity line of credit — often called a HELOC —is a loan in which the
lender agrees to lend a maximum amount within an agreed period (called a term), where the
collateral is the borrower’s equity in his/her house (akin to a second mortgage).

16. A HELOC differs from a conventional home equity loan in that the borrower is not
advanced the entire sum up front, but rather uses it as a line of credit to borrow sums that total no
more than the credit limit, similar to a credit card.

17.  HELOC funds can be borrowed during the “draw period.” which is typically 5 w 25

ycars. /
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18. A HELOC borrower repays the amount drawn, plus interest. A HELOC may have a
minimum monthly payment requirement (often interest only)and a borrower may make &
repayment of any amount so long as it is greater than the minimum payment (but less than the
total outstanding).

19. The full principal amount is due at the end of the draw period, either as a lump-sum
balloon payment or according to a loan amortization schedule.

20. Charter One used certain pre-printed, uniformly-worded form contract documents
when it entered into a HELOC with its customers in the United States. |

2). These include a form contract documeni which Charler One has titled a *Credit
Line Agreement,” a sample of which is attached hereto as Attachment A.

22, ‘The “Credit Line Agreement” of which Attachmint A is an example is o form
contract drafied by Chaner One. which was presented by Charter One to its HELOC customers,
which purports to set forth the basic terms of the HELOC.

23. Among the pre-printed terms is one entitled “ADDITIONAL FINANCE
CHARGES,” which describes the terms under which Charter One may charge an “Annual Fee™
to the HELOC borrower. See Attachment A, “Credit Line Agreement,” at Page 1 of 4, where
the form contract states:

“Annual Fee: $100 will be due annually during the Draw Period after
the expiration of twenty four (24) months from the date of Activation of
the Credit Line Account. The Annual Fee shall be waived for each year
that it is due if, for the immediately preceding twelve (12) months, the
average outstanding balance on your Credit Line Account during such
twelve (12) months is 20% or more of the Line of Credit.” (emphasis

added)
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24. Thus, the plain language of the “Credit Line Agreement” form contract
states, inter alia, that Charter One will not charge the $100 annual fee if the average outstanding
balance on the borrower’s HELOC credit line was 20% or more of their line of credit during the
prior twelve month period.

25. Despite this languagé in Charter One’s “Credit Line Agreement” form contract,
Defendant Charter One employs an actual policy of charging this $100 annual fee to HELOC
customers, even where the average outstanding balance on the borrower’s HELOC credit line
was 20% or more of their line 9f credit during the prior twelve month period.

26. What happened to Plaintiff Block illustrates this uniform policy.

27. Plaintiff Block entered into a “Credit Line Agreement” form contract with
Defendant, which contained the same “Annual Fee” clause quoted above.

28. For each twelve month period since the Plaintiff’s HELOC was opened, Plaintiff
Block has maintained an average outstanding balance on his HELOC account of more than 20%
of his line of credit.

29. Indeed, for the 12 month period prior to January 3, 2015, the average outstanding
balance on Plaintiff’s HELOC account was more than 20% of his line of credit. |

30. Despite this, on or about January 27, 2015, Plaintiff Block received the attached
“Equity Line of Credit Statement” from Charter One relating to his HELOC, notifying him
that Defendant had charged him an annual “USAGE FEE” of $100 on January 3, 2015. See
Attachment B, Plaintiff’s HELOC Credit Statement.

31. That $100 annual “USAGE FEE” has now been added by Defendant to Plaintiff"s

outstanding balance.
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32. None of the documents signed by Plaintiff or the class relating to the HELOC,
including the “Credit Line Agreement” form contract, actually use the term “Usage Fee.”

33. Rather, the only reference to any $100 fee in any such documents, or any fee which
could possibly be described as a “USAGE FEE,” is the clause in “Credit Line Agreement”
form contract quoted above, which states that a $100 “annual fee” may be charged, only if a
HELOC customer’s average outstanding balance (i.e. usage of the credit line) for the prior 12
month period was less than 20% of their credit line.

34. Thus, the plain terms of this clause in the “Credit Line Agreement” form contract
bar Defendant from charging this $100 fee to Plaintiff or any other class member whose average
outstanding balance on their HELOC for the prior 12 month period was more than 20% of their
credit line.

35. The imposition of this unauthorized $100 annual fee upon Plaintiff Block was not
an accident or an isolated incident. Rather, it was done as a matter of intentional policy by
Defendant, since the imposition of such a charge was done by a computer program and not
imposed individually by employees of Defendant.

36. Indeed, Plaintiff Block twice contacted Charter One regarding the imposition of
this $100 annual fee and was fold both times by Defendant’s employees that this charge was not
a mistake and that it was being imposed pursuant to Charter One’s policy.

37. Specifically, as a matter of policy, Charter One has begun charging this $100 annual
“USAGE FEE?” to HELOC customers who signed the “Credit Line Agreement” form contract,
even when their average outstanding balance on their HELOC for the prior 12 month period was

more than 20% of their credit line.
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| '38. This policy is unlawful in that nothing in the HELOC contract documents
authorizes this fee. Indeed, such a $100 fee is specifically prohibited by the “Credit Line
Agreement” form contract under such circumstances. l
39. To make matters worse, at the time he opened his HELOC with Defendant,
Plaintiff Block executed a second form contract document which was drafted and presented to

him by Defendant, entitled the “ANNUAL FEE RIDER.” See Attachment C, “ANNUAL FEE

" RIDER?” form contract document,

40. Like the “Credit Line Agreement” form document, the “ANNUAL FEE
RIDER” forrp document is a mass-produced, pre-printed form contract created and distributed
by Dcfendaﬁt.

| 41. Like Plaintiff, numerous consumers who entered into a HELOC with Defendant
executed an “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” form document which was identical to Attachment C.

42. This “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” form document stated in clear an_d express
language that no annual fee would be charged to Plaintiff and any other class members who
executed this form document. See Attachment C, “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” form contract

document:

“The paragraph entitled ‘ADDITIONAL FINANCE CHANGES’ is
amended to read as follows: ‘You agree to pay the following additional
FINANCE CHARGES: Annua] Fee: $0.00°” (emphasis added)

43. The “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” clearly and unambiguously states that it is
modifying the language of the paragraph entitled “ADDITIONAL FINANCE CHARGES? in
the “Credit Line Agreement” form contract, nullifying the language in the “Credit Line
Agreement” which allows a $100 annual fee to be charged if the borrower’s average outstanding

balance falls below 20% for the prior 12 months.
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44, The “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” does not purport to allow an annual fee to be

charged to a HELOC borrower under any circumstances or conditions, regardless of their
average outstanding balance. Instead, customers who executed the “ANNUAL FEE RIDER”
were told plainly, and without condition or reservation, that the “Annual Fee” on the HELOC
will be “50.00.” |

45. .Thus, in imposing the $100 annual “USAGE FEE?” on Plaintiff and the other
class members who executed an “ANNUAL FEE RIDER” form contract document, there is ﬁo

possibility that Defendant miscalculated the borrower’s average outstanding balance since the

- “ANNUAL FEE RIDER? says the annual fee will “$0.00”, regardless of the balance.

46. To the contrary, Defendant has clearly made a conscious policy decision to impose
this $100 annual “USAGE FEE,” despite the plain languagé of the “ANNUAL FEE RIDER.”

47. - Upon information and belief, Defendant has imposed this $100 fee on thousands
of persons in the United States who executed an “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” form contract
document identical to the pre-printed portions of Attachment C.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

48. Plaintiff brings the claims set forth in Counts I and II under Fed.R.Civ.P. 23 on

behalf of a class (hereafter the “Annual Fee Rider Class™) defined as:

All persons in the United States who had home equity lines of credit
with Charter One, who:

A) Between February 27, 2009 and the present were charged an
annual “Usage Fee” of $100 by Charter One; and ‘

B) Signed an “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” form contract document with
Charter One which was identical or substantially similar to
Attachment C, which contained the clause:
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. “The paragraph entitled ‘ADDITIONAL FINANCE
CHANGES’ is amended to read as follows: ‘You agree to
pay the following additional FINANCE CHARGES:
Annual Fee: $0.00”

49. Plaintiff also brings the claims set forth in Count III under Fed.R.Civ.P. 23 on
behalf of a sub-class of the Annual Fee Rider Class (hereafter the “TILA Sub-Class™) defined as:

All persons who fit within the “Annual Fee Rider Class” defined above,
who were charged an annual “Usage Fee” of $100 for the first time by
Charter One between February 27, 2014 and the present.

50. Finally, Plaintiff brings the claims set forth in Counts I and II under Fed.R.Civ.P.23
on behalf of a class (hereafter the “Credit Line Agreement Class™) defined as:

All persons who had home equity lines of credit with Charter One,
who:.

A) Between February 27, 2009 and the present were charged an
annual “Usage Fee” of $100 by Charter One;

B) Had an average outstanding balance of 20% or more on their
Chart One credit line for the twelve months immediately prior to
the imposition of this $100 fee; and

C) Signed a “Credit Line Agreement” form contract with Charter
One which was identical or substantially similar to Attachment A,
which contained the following clause under the heading
“ADDITIONAL FINANCE CHANGES”:

“Annual Fee: $100 will be due annually during the Draw
Period after the expiration of twenty four (24) months
from the date of Activation of the Credit Line Account.
.The Annual Fee shall be waived for each year that it is
due if, for the immediately preceding twelve (12) meonths,
the average outstanding balance on your Credit Line
Account during such twelve (12) months is 20% or more
of the Line of Credit.”

51. The members of the proposed Annual Fee Rider Class, TILA Sub-Class and

Credit Line Agreement Class are each so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.
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52.. The exact number and identities of the persons who fit within the proposed classes
are contained in Defendant’s records and can be easily ascertained from thosé records. |

53. Each of these classes is fully ascertainable in that Defendant maintains both paper
and electronic records which identify the names of all HELOC customers who executed the
“Credit Line Agreement” form contract, all HELOC customers who executed the “ANNUAL
FEE RIDER?” form contract document, and alt HELOC customeré on whom Defendant imposed
the $100 “USAGE FEE” and the dates this feé was imposed.

54. Each of these proposed classes is composed of several thousand persons.

55. The claims in this action arise exclusively from Defendant’s uniform policy and
pre-printed, identically-worded form documents created by Defendant.

56. No violations alleged are a result of any oral communications or individualized
interaction between any class member and Defendant.

57. There are common questions of law and fact affecting the rights of the Annual Fee
Rider Class members, including, inter alia, the foliowing:

a. Whether the uniform language of the “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” form
contract document barred Defendant from charging any annual fee to

the class members who executed this document;

b. Whether the $100 “USAGE FEE? chatged to Plaintiff and this class
was barred by the terms of the “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?”;

c. Whether Defendant’s act in charging the $100 “USAGE FEE” to class
members who executed the “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” form contract
document was a breach of contract under Rhode Island law; and

d. Whether Defendant’s act in charging the $100 “USAGE FEE” to class
members who executed the “ANNUAL FEE RIDER?” form contract

document violated the implied duty of good faith and fair dealing under
Rhode Island law.

58. There are common questions of law and fact affecting the rights of the TILA Sub-

10
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Class, including all those questions set forth in Paragraph 56, above, as well as the additional
issues of whether Defendant’s actions violated TILA by violating:
a. 12 CF.R. 226.5b(f)(3); and/or
b. 12 C.F.R. 226.9(c).
59. There are common questions of law and fact affecting the rights of the Credit Line
Agreement Class, including the followiné:

a. Whether the $100 “USAGE FEE?” was an “annual fee” within the meaning of the
“Credit Line Agreement” form contract;

b. Whether the uniform language of the “Credit Line Agreement” form contract
document barred Defendant from charging any annual fee to customers whose
average outstanding balance for the prior 12 months was less than 20% of their
HELOC credit line;

c. Whether Defendant had a policy of charging HELOC customers who executed the
“Credit Line Agreement” form contract a $100 “USAGE FEE” even where
their outstanding balance for the prior 12 months was less than 20% of their
HELOC credit line;

d. Whether Defendant’s actions violated Rhode Island law relating to contract and
the implied duty of good faith and fair dealing in contracts.

60. Plaintiff is a member of each class and sub-class he seeks to represent.

61. The claims of Plaintiff are not only typical of all class members, they are identical
in that they arise from uniform policies, form documents and circumstances, and are based on the
same legal theories as all class members.

62. | Plaintiff has no interest antagonistic to, or in conflict with, any class or sub-class.

63. Plaintiff will thoroughly and adequately protect the interests of the class and sub-
class, having retained qualified and competent legal counsel to represent himself and the class
and sub-class.

64. Defendant has acted and refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the

11
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class and sub-class, thereby making appropriate injunctive and declaratory relief for the class as
a Wholg.

65. The prosecution of separate actions by individual class members would create a
risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications.

66. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
. adjudication of the controversy.

67. Common questions will predominate, and there will be no unusual manageability
issues.

COUNT 1

BREACH OF CONTRACT UNDER RHODE ISLAND LAW

Brought On Behalf of the Members of the Annual Fee Rider Class
and the Credit Line Agreement Class

68. Plaintiff incorporates all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth at length
herein.

69. By the allegations set forth herein, a contract existed between Defendant and
Plaintiff, as well as between Defendant and each member of the Annual Fee Rider Class and the
Credit Line Agreement Class.

70. By the facts alleged hérein, Defendant has breached that contract, causing actual
damages to Plaintiff and each member of the Annual Fee Rider Class and the Credit Line

Agreement Class.
71. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and each member of the Annual Fee Rider Class and

the Credit Line Agreement Class, seeks all damages for breach of contract which are available

under Rhode Island law, as well as all other appropriate relief available under such law.

12
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COUNT I

BREACH OF IMPLIED COVENANT OF GOOD FAITH
UNDER RHODE ISLAND LAW

Brought On Behalf of the Members of the Annual Fee Rider Class

and the Credit Line Agreement Class
72.  Plaintiff incorporates all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth at length

herein.

73.  Under Rhode Island law, there exists an implied covenant of good faith and fair
dealing in every express or implied contract. |

74. By the allegations set forth herein, a contract existed between Defendant and
Plaintiff, as well as between Defendant and each member of the Annual Fee Rider Class and the
Credit Line Agreement Class.

75. By the facts alleged herein, Defendant has breached that duty of good faith and fair
dealing, causing actual damages to Plaintiff and each member of the Annual Fee Rlder Class and
the Credit Line Agreement Class.

76. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and each member of the Annual Fee Rider Class and
the Credit Line Agreement Class, seeks all damages for such breach which are available under
Rhode Island law, as well as all other appropriate relief available under such law.

COUNT 11

VIOLATIONS OF THE TRUTH IN LENDING ACT
15 U.S.C. § 1601 et seq

Brought on Behalf of the Members of the TILA Sub-Class

77. Plaintiff incorporates all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth at length

herein.

13
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78. Congress enacted the Truth in Lending Act to “assure a meaningful disclosure of
credit terms so that the consumer will be able to compare more readily the various credit
terms available to him and avoid the uninformed use of credit[.]” 15 U.S.C. §1601(a).

79. The Federal Reserve Board was granted authority to promulgate regulations under
the TILA, and Congress specially designated the Federal Reserve Board as the primary source
for the interpretation and application of TILA. See Household Credit Services. Inc. v. Pfennig,
541 U.S. 232, 235, 238, 124 8. Ct. 1741, 158 L. Ed. 2d 450 (2004) (citations omitted).

80. Regulation Z, set forth in 12 C.F.R. Part 226, represents the Federal Reserve
Board’s exercise of this authority.

81. Generally speaking, the TILA requires a creditor to disclose information relating to
finance charges, annual percentage rates of interest, and borrowers’ rights and also prohibits a
creditor from changing the terms of a loan without following the procedures set forth in TILA.

82. A claim for damages under the TILA is subject to a one-year statute of
limitations, which runs from “the date of the occurrence of the violation.” 15 U.S.C. §1640(e).

83. Based on the facts alleged herein, Defendant violated the requirements of the TILA
by adversely changing, without authorization or providing proper notice to the borrower, the
terms of the HELOC plan, sometime on or after February 27, 2014.

84. 12 CF.R.226.5b(f)(3), entitled “[rjequirements for home-equity plans,” states

in relevant part:
“(f) Limitations on home equity plans. No creditor may, by contract or.
otherwise:

* * *

(3) Change any term, except that a creditor may:

1] Provide in the initial agreement that it may
prohibit additional extensions of credit or reduce

14




Casd|1:15-cv-01524-JHR-JS Document 1 Filed 02/27/15 Page 16 of 28 PagelD: 16

the credit limit during any period in which the
maximum annual percentage rate is reached. A

creditor also may provide in the initial agreement
that specified changes will occur if a specified
event takes place (for example, that the annual
percentage rate will increase a specified amount if
the consumer leaves the creditor’s employment).

* * *

(iii) Make a specified change if the consumer specifically
agrees to it in writing at that time.

(iv) Make a change that will unequivocally benefit the
consumer throughout the remainder of the plan.

(v) Make an insignificant change to terms.”

85. None of the contract documents or any other disclosures provided to Plaintiff and
the TILA Sub-Class at the time they opened their HELOC accounts stated that Defendant could
charge a $100 “USAGE FEE” or any annual fee to Plaintiff or the other members of the TILA
Sub-Class.

86. Nothing in the contract documents or other disclosures purported to give Defendom
the unilateral right to impose such a fee or to unilaterally alter the terms of the HELOC plan to
authorize such a fee.

87. To the contrary, as described previously, the contract documents and disclosures
provided to Plaintiff and the TILA Sub-Class by Defendant affirmatively stated that lheﬁ: would
an “annual fee” of “80.00” and no other type of annual fee.

88. Prior to February 27, 2014, Defendant did not charge a $100 “USAGE FEE” to
Plaintiff or the other members of the TILA Sub-Class.

89.  Sometime between February 27, 2014 and the present, Defendant began imposing

this $100 “USAGE FEE” on Plaintiff and the TILA Sub-Class.

15
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90. Specifically, in the case of Plaintiff, Defendant - for the very first time — imposed a
$100 “USAGE FEE” on Plaintiff on J anuary 27,2015. See Attachment B.

91. The imposition of this $100 “USAGE FEE” on Plaintiff and the TILA Sub-Class |
between February 27, 2014 and the present was a change in the terms of HELOC plan.

92. This unlawful change occurred on or after February 27, 2014,

93. This change was not for the benefit of Plaintiff or the TILA Sub-Class, but rather
for the benefit of Defendant.

94. Prior to imposing this change in terms, Defendant did not notify Plaintiff and the
TILA Sub-Class of any such change, nor did Defendant seek their consent to such a change.

95. The change in terms which is the subject of this Count occurred on or after March
1, 2014 and neither Plaintiff nor the members of the TILA Sub-Class had notice of this change
prior to February 27, 2014.

96. Prior to the actual imposition of this $100 “USAGE FEE” in Defendant’s “Equity
Line of Closing Statement” (i.e. Attachment B), Defendant did not send any other notice of, or
seek the consent of Plaintiff or the TILA Sub-Class members to, this charge in the terms of the
HELOC.

97. Thus, Defendant changed the terms the HELOC’s of Plaintiff and the TILA Sub-
Class after February 27, 2014 in violation of 12 C.F.R. 226.5b(f)(3). See 12 C.F.R. Pt. 226,

Supp. 1, § Sb(f)X3), Federal Reserve Board Comment 1:

“In general, a creditor may not change the terms of a plan after it is
opened. For example, a creditor may not increase any fee or impose a

new fee once the plan has been opened, even if the fee is charged by a
third party, such as a credit reporting agency, for a service. The change

of terms prohibition applies to all features of a plan, not only those
required to be disclosed under this section. For example, this provision

16
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applies to charges imposed for late payment, although this fee is not
required to be disclosed under § 226.5b(d)(7).” (emphasis added)

98. Defendant’s conduct also violated 12 C.F.R. 226.9(c), which states in relevant part:
“For home-equity plans subject to the requirements of § 226.5b,

whenever any term required to be disclosed under § 226.6(a) is changed

or the required minimum periodic payment is increased, the creditor

shall mail or deliver written notice of the change to each consumer who
may be affected. The notice shall be mailed or delivered at least 15 days

prior to the effective date of the change. The 15-day timing
requirement does not apply if the change has been agreed to by the

consumer; the notice shall be given, however, before the effectwe date
of the change.” (emphasis added)

99. Defendant failed to provide proper notice to Plaintiff and the TILA Sub-Class, as
required by 12 C.F.R. 226.9(c), that Defendant was amending the terms of the HELOC plans to
impose a $100 “USAGE FEE?” on Plaintiff and the TILA Sub-Class.

100. Defendant did not send written notice of this change to Plaintiff and the TILA Sub-
Class 15 days prior to implementing‘this change.

101. Rather, the first time Plaintiff and the members of the TILA Sub-Class received
any notice of this change was when they received the “Equity Line of Credit Statement” from
Defendant, which indicated that a $100 “USAGE FEE” had already been added by Defendant to
the balance owed on their HELOC’s. See Attachment B.

102. As aresult of these violations of TILA and Regulation Z, Plaintiff and the TILA
Sub-Class have each suffered damages.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff ask this court to:

a. Certify the proposed Fed.R.Civ.P, 23 classes and sub-class;

b. Enter an order for injunctive and declaratory relief as described herein;

17
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c. Enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff and class member for damages suffered as a
result of the conduct alleged herein, to include interest and pre-judgment interest;
d. Award Plaintiff reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs; and
€. Grant such other and further legal and equitable relief as the court deems just and
equitable.
JURY DEMAND
Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury as to all issues so triable.
DeNITTIS OSEFCHEN, P.C.
BY: _/s/ Stephen P. DeNittis
Stephen P. DeNittis, Esq. (SD-0016)
Joseph A. Osefchen, Esq. (JO-5472)
Shane T. Prince, Esq. (SP-0947)
5 Greentree Centre
525 Route 73 North, Suite 410
Marlton, NJ 08053

(856) 797-9951
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Dated: February 27, 2015

18
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MARC BLOCK Charter One, a divigion of RBS Citizens, N.A. \
ne One Citizens Plaxa
: Providence, RI 02903
Leader's Name end Address :

Bomower's Name end Address
*You" or “Borrower™ means each borrower sbove, jointly and severslly

No. Initisl Advence $21,314.88 Mawrhy Date: _S00wwnthe .
Dawe 12/1212008 Draw Period __iQynars ] Billing Cyeles

Lin of Credit $81,383.00 Repoyment Peslod _{6years Do gquory month —

ofevery _month
cnmmacamm

GENERALLY: This Credit Linc Agroemen! ("Apamuﬂhmwmmmw oo of crodit mmw; Many ofthe terms we
usz In this Agreement bave speofal The term “thiz plan™ mesns your bomse fins of crodit. The tenmn “loan accomnt belanne™ means the sym of the
unpaid yeincipdl of loars wade endix this plan, plus wnpid bt camod FIRANCE "Line of Crodk” or “Crodit Limit™ meues the tudmum amourt of

principal wo wil] eadinaiily atiow you 0 owe us under this pian &t stry tine. ks addition, we will sy (e Sofiowing tonms for tis phn: “initis! Advanec™ meaas the
smount of the lokn yon request xt the closlng.

TERM: mm-orymcmammmnmnaumapwwmmmmdﬁuwm

indebiadneass under this Agroement, if 2501 already puid porsizent to Byt pryment provisions bolow, will be due and paysiie upon ermination. “Duwl'q-hd"km
{10) years from the date your Credit Line Acsosnt Is activited, Activation is defined as the eariler of f) the date of the knkti disdursceen on your Credit Line
Ascoum: oe () the daxe the Crodit Line Acooant ks set ep an owr strvising sysiem (“Aztivation™). mmmwmmmumuwwm
toans and you mmuumﬂhahhumﬂmn(lammwrm The end of the Repayment Freiod b known a5 the “Matority
Date™ You egrov that, 8t our sole disoretion, we may renow or extend (he period during which you uy ebiain sdvences or make payments.

REQUESYING A LOAN: You roques s oan ander this Agrecrent by writing & spocis! Mwwm%&bm '

VARIABLE RATE: mmnmmrm RATE mm-mu By Roliowisig fndex; the bighest Prime Rate most

sovently published in the Moacy Ratl) oy Eﬂ%hﬁ- L“." month (“index™). Any incrense or decrease in

the ANNUAL PERCENTAGE Re¥Rurl maﬂunummdumuﬁcmnm& ROENTAGE RATE mny tosrease If this Index
Endex dec Aninorense wil result in an Incrosse bn the FINANEE CHAR

aad i1 oy have the effvet of Increasing vour
ftet of docrensing your periadic minimum

I the fndex. changddegoptfrequentty thin the ANKUAL PERCENTAGERATE, we will Il fn effecton &ehubycfmeﬂmli)ﬂc
::mmdumm EFERCENTAGE RATE. In such cases, we will ignosp any cungesin thefndex that ooour betwocn ANNUAL PRRCENTAGE
TE adjustments,

>
The "ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE” rcforred w in wmhummmmwummwwumu
described above. The corrospongiog ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE will novey excend 21% and will ssveroxoced thobighent aflowable rate for tais type of
apresment 4s detenmined by applicable state orfoders! law. The ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE will never bojeas dun 2.5%.

HOW THELOAN I8 ADVANCED: Whoa m-mwmmumwmuwmuumﬂwmcmm
voquest. Wewmmmmtvydepuhz:d\emmln your tnsaction sscotnt, by sdvencing the monay direetly to you, or by paying 8 desiprated third
peveon or account, depending o how we agree o mike the sdvance. We will record the senoant as 3 Joas in yoxr loan eooozmt.

mewewﬂlauw&uﬂlyymwmuhnMMMmhMMdmmmmbwwm:nMUL:w
of Credit Hisved in this Agreement. We tmay, 8l our option, gram anch 2 roquest withent vhBzxing curstives to do 5o in the ftwre. If we tllow yoato yous Line
af Credit amount. we may demand ihe inmediate payment of wmﬂhmﬁh&ed%cwﬂudmuhgummiwhm

exceods the Lins o0 Crodh amownt.

PERIODIC FINANCE CHARGES. Vwﬂﬂmnpﬁuﬂeﬂmmuh ptabibdingRmount of the principal betanos vader your Crodit Line, cach
bitkng cycle during the Baw poriod and tie Repayman Period, The perfodic FINANCE CH

HARGE-<I] bogtn t aocrue on the date Credii Advances are postod 1o
your Crexdit Line Account. Thaes is no “grace parfod” which wauid atiow you to avoida peviodic FINANCE CHARGE on your Coedit Advanoes,

Method Used to Determine the Batance on Whick the Perlodic FINANCE CHARGE Wit ﬁomum FINANCE CHARGE on
your Credit Line Aootunt by determining the average dally badsnoe of your Credik Line Account that anonnt by the applicublc dafly pariodic reto,
mwmmuayxhumm To grs the wverage dally belance, wo ke the Mm«mmmmm

diy 8nd add new Crodit Advances and subtmect any crodils and sy princips] repaid srith wm mwmmm Then we
wwnnmwmmmmmmm&mmwum hmmmmmu«wmm
sicruent). This gives bs the sveaage dufly betanee, The average daily datance does not include fiamoe chargrs, ismunnce preadumns, snaul focs ar other charges.

How Yon May Compute the Periodic FIRANCE CHARGES on Yourline of Credit Account. When Gieavernge daily balance bus boen eorypraiod, we multiply
mb«;ﬁum»mwymmwmuMnuammmwmwMMofmmmm “The resutt is

the mimber of days in the billing eycle. This figure is the pedodic FINANCE CHARGE uasessed for the biiting cycle.
. Onuwdote ofthe prepasation mwm.m porindic FINANCECHARGE was __ 0.01055 9§ whish coyresponds 1o an ANNUAL
FERCENTAGRRATROF __ 385 ! &wmmcsmm RATE tnohadts intorosts sid no oihey Soots,

ADTMTIONAL FINARCE CRARGES: \fuwwnmmm FINANCE CHARGES:
mmmmmummmumwmumMwwmmuuamanmm

Aovemrd. Th Ammsal Fee shall be waived R cach yorr Giat o s due H, for the immodiately proceding twvaive (12) months, tie sverage outstanding betance on your
Cretn Line Aceount durmg such twelve (12) tmomths is 20% or more of the Line of Crediz

Prepayment Fre: You will pay $350 If you oknoe! ehis Agreemen withn three {3) yearsof Activation of the Agroement,
HOW YOU REPAY YOUR LOANS:

R) Braw Perlod: On srbefore cach payment due dale, you ngrecto meke aninman paymest. The minum paypentis the acerued FINANCE CHARGES an the
lan day of the billing cycle and other charpss imposed Guring the billing cycie. You must ales pay any past due auwrants and any amount that cxeeeds your Line of
Credit, You can pay offali of iy past of what you owe w any tims. However, 50 kang & You GWe any amown you omist continue to make the minimm payment

b) Repaywent Peciod: During the Repuyment Petiod, your pegular paytmomt will consistof winwipalaad interost, The principat portion of your payraess willbe a

CredilinoAgreementzy V1
Page 1 0f4
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b i A g Fr i Pt o e we oo Yon ol
B e o e s ot o s omam P b e
payrocet due date indicated on your perodic billing stttomem. ]
©)Paxments: Al payments must be made by acheck, money order, of other instrament in US. doltars amd must o secefved by as ot Gueremittance sddress shown on
your periodic billing stasement, Loans issued plustan to e tannd of the Agreesoess thati not be used for pryments duc herewndr, or for any s of soafy doe 0
the holder of any mangsge ar secuity interest affecting your heme that & given for sacurity for this Agroemant,
S 71 S T b e
37 LEXINGTON CIRCLE, MARLTON, NJ 05053
ADDITIONAL CHARGES: You agres to pay the following addhions] charges:

Ovedfimit Fes: A forof SZ8.50 In cesh billing oyrls diring which the butance de exceeds the maximusn Credl Limit,

Retumod Check Foe: A fee of $25.00 for ach retirm of 8 dishonored cheek or other payment instroment,

Stop Prymnant Fee: A fee of $28.50 for each chock on which you atop payment.

The Overtimit Foe, Retumed Check Foc #ad Siop Payment Fec wil intrease by $2.00 on cach anniversary date of this plan for the 12 snouth period thoreafier.

Lite Charge: “The tesaer'of $40 07 ben pesoesd (16%) of the payment uot pakd within 13 Gays of the payrocss duc dte,

Chook Regeder Foe: $6./00 for aach check roonder (25 dherks per soorder),

Copy of Periodic Billing Statemen Foe: $2.00 for each copy of your moothly periodio tilfing statensen that yeu requost.
Appreisal S_NA _; Officiad Foes$__W/A__; Doc, Fees S_N/A _: TiloBeasch S A : (Otherd_ S >
o T ot e T i,
speciel floed baveds ander th National Flood trpursace A<t of 1954, o5 smended, yon eset also smtntais flood surence an the Propesty. t

Subjsct to appiicadle
i you il to obisin or matntain insurance a3 requiod beseln o in the Seourlty Tatrument, we mry purchase (nscomos t protet our own intorest, add the premium o
your belonce, pursue sny othier remodies avoilable to us, 6r do sny oae or moee of e things.

Agrecment), o7 (b) bill you seperately (i which case you agres to pay the bill immedisiely), Ywmbmhwunwu:‘mmau;m(rng
provided in this Agroement cnti? each amotents av sepaid fn full. You uedersisnd and ecknowledgs that xny insurenoe obtained and maimtained by us may
frotect the imerests of us and any other creditor with & prior movgage on the Property, md (1) be morw cxpensive 2 larannce abizined eod malutsined by you.

CHARGESTO YOUR CREDIT LINE: We susy éhtrge your Crodil Liso Aocount to pay other foos and cons hat you erc abifignted ¢ poy wader this Agrecent.
onder the Seowity Instrument or wnder sy ofher document selated 1o your Credlt Line Account, I addition, we may charge your Credlt Line Acconnt for funds
required for continaing fesmwmoe covenage as described in dhis Agreemin! or s described in the Seomity Insisument. We may ala, 8 our optios, charge your Credit
Line Acootent to pay any couts or sxpensss to protoet our sscurity taterest in the Property. Theso costs or expensés inetudo, hml‘:pw&:mdﬁm
ander any existing lens on the Fropoety. 1 you do ool mwmwwwummm your Credii Accoun fhe amount
mmmmebmmmm e losn and will decroese the fonds evalizble, i any, imder the Crexit Line Accoant.
However, wo have no obligntion to provide atty of the loans reftered to in this parsgrph.

INITIAL PERIODIC BYLLING STATEMENT: Your inftisl periodic billing stxtessent witl be éxsaed on thefirst biffing date after your Crodit Lino Account fs sct
Up On Ot Bysteen,

OR REDUCTION: Wemwﬁmummmmmxmum your Credit Limit if: '
(1) The valuo of the Peoperty securing this pim Soolines significantly below € Property’s appraisad value for pluposes of fhis Crodit Line Acommt, ‘This
inchda,MnmnMMM&WMWMMMNMMWhMWWM(M)MM

w-mmmﬁmmmm

d?l :'h in deGul of ma&:&"”"" — somring mmm%m dh%‘umr‘
o are L ] Qf any egreement his Aj - afl of yorr L]
Cutcgories wmmmumwﬁ"mwuutm“%mmmnwmm
WOWWME%‘MW%WW““‘MM.*W“W“WM
terms of any of trusl, mostgage or Goed to seeurs dobt an the Property, obligstions to potity ug wnd ts provide docirents or Infarmation to us
(such as updated finamcist infonmaiion), obligations to comply with epplicable bsw {sich a3 zoning restrictions), and olligations of any cozadker;

(4) A govermmemai scticn prevents us flum imposing the ANNUAL FPERCENTAGE RATE for fn Qs Agroement;

5 mmn-mmwnmay-mmmmm»memm valun of the sccurity (nteross s Joss than L20% of the Line of

(6) The ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE costesponding i tho periodic tote reaches the maxima rats stlosved under his plan; o
(1] Amhmmhmndutno@dmﬂmmuemhuammuwm

We will mail or deliver written Botice to youafter we suspend yoir Credi Line Account or redise your Coodit Limit, mnd this nocewill doscribethe
5povific rexsom for ouy attion, We arc oblipsted to reinstate your esedis priviloges when the conditton(s) which camsed the sugpension or rodactivn has bom curcd or

has changed and you tave notified us in writing, sxpiaining how the condition(s) has bomn curod or has changad, provided 1o now condition(s) wnder this provision
eudsts or has oveurved,

Befors sciasining your right to obeain lonny, o restoring your Credit Limis, we may condust or obtein eredit aports, sppeaisals. tien starches snd other
cvabusions 85w oomldes appropise To the extest peristod by spplicable kiw, you agate to relusburse us on desnand for ey costs we sotuedly iaour Eor obtrining

1fen event or oondition described in the Suspension of Reduction provision oocurg which i atsosn cventor condition desoribed in the Tenmination and
Accelmtion grovision, we bave the option of exercithe any or all of the remedics destribed in the Suspension o Reduction provision or Remedies provision.

TERMINATION AND ACCRLERATION: We: may takio ihe sotfons tated in tho Resoedics provision if eny ef the following events or vonditions osgur:

(1) You engage ip fread or satevial misrepresentoticn in conneotion with this phan: -

(2) Fallurc to meet the payment tavms of this Agreoment, sachas yoor fofture to make sny peyment en orbefors the paymest dos date; or

{3) Your action or invotion sdversely affocts the Priparty o our rights in the Property. This con Inchate, for example, fadiere 10 maiatoin vequired insironoe,
waste or destnuctive use of the Propenty, fullure to pay taxes, death of oll persoes Sixhie on your Credit Lins Account or the desth of asy one of you if the Propenty is
advereely affected by such denth, toamsficr of tithe or sate of the Proparty, 810 Praperty ks trken through einont danmin, creation of a scafer Son on the Prapesty without
our pecenission, forettosure by the holder of a prior He, sse of the Property for prohibiied pusposes end sach use saikjeots the Propesty 1o seizwrs, you tsove ont of the
Pruperty of you break sny promise made i this Agr or i the Securdty tnsoumens.
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dovices
I your Creddit Ling Acoownt is tevmisated, you must inmedisiely destroy all checks endany other socess devioes. Any useof cheoks or other access
mmmﬁwzmmhwm v«mmmw&mmu«mm&mmmmmmmm

REMEDIES: lfucmxmmwmnefmmwmmmwmmm«mmmbhmwe
may o iy combinatios of the following tiings:

g; '?lv:nwmwofyw mwmmm

“ o

(&) Wegmmmmmm Agtormemiand my oer spreesend you have made with os Lo be {aumedistaty duo and payahie;

(4) We may foreciose the Secuity fnstroment;

(5) We may reduce your Crodit Limit; snd

{6) We mmay take any other sction permiteed by this Agreement, by law v i equity.

SET-OFF: Youagree that we may set-off sty smoun dus and paysble ender fhis Agreeme egaint any right you mey Bave to reveive menty fromus. Your righi to
reocive money Brom ux inclodes:

1) Asty Seposit account Salance you bave with vl

{2) Anty tadey owed 8o you on an itemn prevented to us.ov in our possession for colinetion or exclange; sod

{3} Any repurchase agreement or other timilay obligmicns.

*Any ot doc and peysblounder this Agreement” saauns the total amouns 49 which we ane atitied 10 derustd payroant ander the tores efthis.
Agrecment at the Ume we oet off. This tota} inctudes auy batce due that we properly scecierate under this Agroetpent. f your right to recclve mouy from us is slso
nwmdhymwohImwuamMWwwwwmhmwhhmmhmewmm
withdraw on your sole requast or endorsemont.

Our vight of seboff does not :Qmumwmmm rights asise only in a reprosentative capacity, 1t aso toes not apply foany
|Wm&mumﬁhwmwm We will sot mumm«wmmummmwm
off this dolx againm any of your scocunts. You agrecio hold ux healess fom any sush eheirns arising ss vesiit of our caercist of our right of set-off,

AYTORNEYS® FEES: If pormined by lw, you egroc to pay afl o costs, inelading peasonpble sxtovsoys” (ees, thst wo noor in logal peocendings (o coliect or enfarce
this debs should you be in defiush,

TAX DEDUCTIBILATY: You should consud a tax sdvisor roganding the deductibifity of kaerest and cherges under this plan.

FREEZING THE CREDIT LINE ACCOUNT: We shall have the right 10 freezo the Cvedit Line Acconnt dpon (o written reuest of any of you. Vou shall bave the
@mmummmmwwmammmmauumuuwmm

OWNER OCCUPANCYs You must octupy the Progerty th is the socurly fhr this Agrocment atall tins thet this Agreement i iroffect.
MORE‘I'IMNOﬂzmUmmmmmw&wﬁmmmmWhﬁMImwvmm onder this

CONVERSION TO CLOSED END LOAN: o the cvent tils Agreatment expires or iz easelied of teeminated, we may elect to admintaer your Credit Line Account
ay a fixed oadé closed end moetzage lorn. ) .

CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT: You miy cancel your Crodit Line Acoount sl any thna. b two or sioee porens ire obiited under this Agretroont, any one
of them muy provide us with & writken request to eanoe] tho Credit Line Account. i such sancellation oocwrs, ali persons obligated nader this Agreomont munt grovide
s Wish & weittes sequest to relmiote dmw priviteges, We are wader no obligation t rensate drsw privileges onso this Agreesotnt is amochiad.

Upon cancetintion, you st kmmediady destrey all eheoks nd any ey a0oess evices. Azy such exaostiation shall mot relieve yon of any of your obtigations io 15,
:mmx:;mnuwhmmmummawmm»mnummmmmmunc

CREDIT INFORMATION: You agree fo supply us with whatever lafbemstion we roesansbly betieve wo niced to decide whether 10 contimu this plen, We agree to
make teguests for this information withont unduo frequéncy, rad to give you rersouxbie tinw in which to supply the afornstion.

You sulljoring us tp oblain Grancis! information sbout you from e to thms fram thisd paies, inchuding, but not Emited o, 8 credit burcan, your employer, o 2pther
financial instituion. Yeu airo wathoriee vs so disclose infmation sbout -your erecitwortiiness and your Credit Line Acoont t consun®er reporling ageocics. in
mmmaemmm,mmimmmummthMmmm Charter Dne Privacy Notice,

)
APPRM!AL;WewmnmwmdmMMmmmmwnwmmmWWuwmbm
and cxpense, excopt you muss rcimbures o8 for Sy CONS we oo in in connaction with i - obtain

" i l:y mdp oiexining an speaiat reinswting your deht ©0 Yoans or restoring

- HOLD RARMLESS AGRERMENT: In onder to induce us to enter loto Giis Agrooment, you hereby agsee, tet if, far sny reason a spouss or so-owver of the Proposty
m:m.amwmumu%@wmmunummmmm"wwwmwmmam
forower discharge ug any - You thm ke and shol) bo wsh

vipeFa mmmww orewith. futher aproo thet your sl cemody and recotrse against pousE of

NOTICES: Al votices will bs sent to yuar addess 3 show in this Agreement vntss you Rotify B in writing of change o nddress within thisty (30) of
the change, On joint Recounts, notices sent to ene will be considered notice seat 10 al. & i nye iy 00) days o

DOCUMENTATION: You egroe to exotaic o fo-Crocule any dacuman St we roqust i srder 10 Cotroot any aver ar amdssion in the asigial Agroement, Secustty
{ngrumeat, or aiber Credit Lino Accoun relsted docamyents, including, bus 0ot irfied ko, canfimastory or osrestive soourity instrumects.

PERIODIC BILLING STATEMENTS: Each periodic billing statement shal) bs .
days of your recdipt of such periotic biltiog sinioment. — conclusively presusnod eceroct unlcss you potify us fn wiiting of an errer witkin 60

&Amatumormsam Generslly, we say not chemge e teems of this Agreement. However, we may c¢hange the torms ia the

(1) I thia Is & variablc rats phan, we wmy chango the index sl margin if the orlginal ndex dosribed in this Agreement bocomes nasvdisble. Aty now
ummuhwammmduk»maﬁm.mwmammmm.mmm

{2) We may make changes that you hive agseed to in wyiting.

{3) We may moke changes that unequivocally banefit you.

14) We may mske chasges (o inslgnificent terms of this Agreenent.

ﬂ‘wca;emqnimdbmﬂWﬁnwhmwmmmmmmwwﬂmhmw (You should inform us of any change in
INTERYRETATION: Thenames given to paragraphs or sections in this Agreensert ase for reference puzposes anly. They are 2ot to be used to interpret or defing the

Mﬂu}sdnﬁsmmemmhm.wwhhemmthhuw&medmwmulf-cnmﬁn&‘m
mmwmAmnmmemummMwwmummmmamwwmmuwww,

Cadillinegreemontiz? V1
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Thevefore, a court may eofosue the rest of fae provisions of this :?mmmmdﬁ Agreement sy be found to be invelid or unenforseshle. I we go
10 couri for sy Toason, we can tee & copy, filmed or clectronic, of any periodio bitthng sistement, this Agreersent, the Secusity mm.ormamgrmw
prove what you 0w s or thit 8 tansaction hes takeen place. The sopy, pierefihn, mierofiche, o7 aptical image will kave the sne validity a3 tho origiet.

GOVERNING LAW; This sgroemtet is governed hy fodeeal law incloding 12 USC section 85 and 12 CFR 24001 andto the extent procmpred by Gudesel low, e

lew of Rhods hland shail apply, thbMﬁwﬁanMM&W#&W«&M&MMMis

SIGNATURES: By signing below, you agree to the tems of this Agreement and you prosniseto pay ary £mooms yod ewe ader this Agreement. You also statotha
vou veosived 4 greement on teday’s ¢aie,

by

L8 ane A

WE MAY REPORT INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR ACCOUNT TO %REDB‘ BUREAUS. LATE PAYMENTS, MISSED

PAYMENTS, OR OTHER DEFAULTS ON YQUR ACCOURT MAY BE REFLECTED IN YOUR CREDIT REPORT.

YOUR BILLING RIGHTS
KEEP THIS KOTICEFOR PUTURE USE

This notie coatains important informetion shoaxt your rights snd ey respenibilitics padir the Fair Credh Bifing Ast
Noslfy us in oaze of ervors or guevtions about your bill, Uf you think your hilt b wrong, or i you need mose infonuation sbout & transuction on your bill, write us at
Charter One Consumer Loan Servicing Department, P.O, Box 42002, Provideor, RI 02040-2002. Wil (o us ay 5000 83 possdiie. 'Wo must boar from you no Joter
then 60 days ater we send you the first bifl on witich the ervor of problem appearod Yaou can tefephone us, bz doing 30 will ant preserve your tights.
I your letizy, give us the following infonmation:
(1) Your name and pocognt pumber.

{2) The doltar amount of the fupested amor,

{3) Desciibe the crvoy and explatn, if yoo can, why you bebicve there is en esror. 1f you need mave infornation, desoefbe the item you are ot sure ebout.

4) I you bxve muthorized 83t pay your bili sxtomicelly from yoor savings oy avcesmt, you can stop the payment on axy amount you think is wrong.
Tomummmmmanmmmmhmmm?m:zum. i you

Your rights and oer vespensibifities ofier we recetve your writon notice, We must scknowisdge yous better within 30 unless we have dorrected the ervor by then.
Within 80 days, we st efther éomest the cxwor or eapisin why we bellsve the bill was corress, ' o ”

Afer we reveive your lewer, we caamat try fo ofleet 82y smowm you quosting, o separt yon as ddlinguent. We can centise to bill you for the amous question,
{aofuding FINANCE CRARGES, snd we can anply sny eapeld mnovn agsinst yors coedt timd, You do not have to pay wmmmmvmn?:em
invenigating, bt you are still ob¥igatod to pay the perts of your bR that are ent iy question.

u'weﬁnﬂMWMumMmmeﬂmmwwmmwmummm If ore didnt't make s mistake, you ey

haveto pay FINANCE CHARGES and you will have to make -
wummd&cdw&nkbau’.“ up say snisted payments on thequestioned smant. ko cither oxae, we will send you a statemont of the

Umwuwmwwwmmmmwmmum Howover, ifour doca not satisfy you and you wiile to us within ten
fays telling us that you still refizsg do pay, we st 6ol Rayone wo fopatt you 1o it yos kave 8 question ebe mm'Mwnmmﬁmemem
reportod you to, We rust tof} 2nyone we sepont you to that the maztier has been settiod between us whien & finally is.

1 we don’t folkow these rutes, we cen' collect the firet $50.00 of the questionsd s, oven if your bifl was convet

Cradal mpADreamante? vy
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55 Charter One EQUITY LINE OF
O S 7000 B 1-886-708-3411 CREDIT STATEMENT
Providence Rt 02940 wr:;?mm m; :’:umm o yg:« s teoces
Page 1
Closing Dale
JANUARY 27, 2015
SUMMARY
Account Number
AB 01 007703 59008 B30 A Credit Limit 61,383.00
!!'llu‘l'hl'"h"l‘"‘l'"hlul”III’I“"I"""N'M‘l“"‘ Available Credit 72,283.00
MARC BLOCK Days in Bifiing Cycle 31
37 LEXINGTON CIR ;
MARLTON, NJ 08053-3851 Average Daily Balance 8.419.35
Daily Periodic Rate .00849315%
ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE 3.10%
INTEREST CHARGE 24.80
New Principal Balance 8,100.00
Current Payment 24.80
Past Due Amount 0.00
Tota! Late Fess Due 0.00
Minimum Payment 24.80
Payment [Jue Date 02/23/15
BALANCE SUMMARY '
Previous - Payments/ <+ Advances + Interest + Insurance + Fees = New Total
Total Balance Credits Charge Balance
10,028.37 1,028.37 0.00 24 .80 0.00 100.00 9,124.60
TRANSACTION DETAIL
Dats Description Check No. Amount Princlpel Balance
01/08/15 PAYMENT - THANK YOU 1,028.37 9,100.00
FEE
01103115 USAGE FEE ASSESSED 100.00
TOTAL FEES FOR THIS PERIOD 100.00
{Details continued on next page)

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR STATEMENT OR HAVE BEEN RECENTLY CALLED FOR
ACTIVE MILITARY DUTY, PLEASE CALL OUR 24-HOUR CONTACT CENTER AT 1-886-708-3411.
THANK YOU FOR BANKING WITH CHARTER ONE WHERE GOOD BANKING IS GO0D CITIZENSHIP

Plaass soe reverse side for inportant information, then detach hets and refum tha Bottom portion with your chatk paybis to Charter Oas.

MARC BLOCK
37 LEXINGTON CIR
MARLTON, NJ 08053-3851

Chook i bax if your sdresa o personal nfnmaton
ket Chaaped end tomgdale tha Kum on the revores st

¥% Charter One

Mamber FINC 8 Equal MHousing ender

EQUHTY LINE OF CREDIT
Account Number XHXKXXXAXK053
Payment Due Date 0272315
Minimum Payment L. 2480
Amount Enclosed $ o
1 Y
’"lu|"l]ul;”fl‘mn|MsIlnn'ﬂ’h“"hhu"["‘"c‘dm
Charler One
P.0. Box 42008

Providence, R 02840-2008

{

.,

R L s T
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ANNUAL FEE RIDER

MARC BLOCK

Borrower(s):

This Annual Fee Rider (“Rider”) related to the Credit Line Agreement (“Home
Equity Agreement”) dated the same date as this Rider between the undersigned and
Charter One, a division of RBS Citizens, N.A. ("Lender").

The undersigned have been informed and understand that the purpose of this
Rider is to amend the Credit Line Agreement in certain respect as a result of the Lender
waiving the Annual Fee for the life of the agreement.

(1) The paragraph entitled "ADDITIONAL FINANCE CHARGES" is amended to read as follows:
“You agree to pay the following additional FINANCE CHARGES:
Annusl Fee: $0.00

Prepayment Fee: $350.00 if you cancel this Agreement within three (3) years of the Activation of the Credit
Lipe Agreement, '

The undersigned (or any of them, if mere than one,) acknowledges receipt of 2 copy of this

MARC BLOCK

ArnusiFesRerNe vy



